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October 6, 2011

Board of Trustees
Newark Educators' Community Charter School
County of Essex, New Jersey

Dear Board of Trustees:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Newark Educators’ Community Charter
School (the "Charter School") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is hereby submitted.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Trustees and
administrators of the Charter School. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data
presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the
Charter School. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
Charter School's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four (4) sections: Introductory,
Financial, Statistical and Single Audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter,
the organizational chart and a list of the Board of Trustee members. The financial section
includes the basic financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditors’ report thereon.
The statistical section includes selected financial information, presented on a multi-year basis.
The Charter School is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984, including the Amendments of 19968, and the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and
Non-Profit Organizations”, and the New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid”. Information related to this single
audit, including the auditors’ report on the internal control structure and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the single
audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Newark Educators’ Community
Charter School is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by National Council
on Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statement No. 3. All funds of the Charter School
are included in this report. The Charter School constitutes the reporting entity. The
Charter School provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels
K through 3. These included regular and special education programs. At June 30,
2011, enroliment remained stable at two hundred and forty seven (247) students.




MAJOR INITIATIVES: Following are the major initiatives successfully implemented at
The Newark Educators' Community Charter School for the 2010-2011 school year:

D.R.E.A.M.S. and Responsive Classroom: NECCS implements the Responsive Classroom
Approach which infuses academic instruction with social and emotional learning. The goal is to
enable optimal student learning by supporting social and emotional needs. Developed by
educators, this approach consists of practical strategies for bringing together and balancing
social and academic learning. Grounded in the belief that it is important to know children
individually, culturally, and developmentally, the Responsive Classroom Approach provides
strategies and routines which structure the school day, underscore the critical importance of
classroom organization, support community, engage families and stress the importance of
personal responsibility. Arising from our work with Responsive Classroom, this year we
developed the D.R.E.AAM.S. program to build school-wide community, traditions, and
celebrations. Through the D.R.E.A.M.S. program students are taught to live by the principles of
Determination, Respect, Excellence, Attitude, Making a difference, and Safety. This year, we
held our first D.R.E.A.M.S. pep rally and field day. NECCS also implemented D.R.E.A.M.S. Cards —
a positive reward system in which classes could earn cards for displaying any of the D.R.E.A.M.S.
principles in order to receive classroom rewards and celebrations. This year, classes earned
over 509 D.R.E.A.M.S. cards for their all of their hard work.
Family Retreat Project: Without a doubt, NECCS’s Family Retreat Project was a huge success.
Throughout the school year, the Family Retreat Committee planned and held four parent
retreats with three taking place on Saturdays, and the final one being held during the evening
on a school day. The retreats were well attended, with mothers, fathers and children
numbering well over 100 for each of the events. The goal of the family retreat committee was
to bring parents and their children together for a fun-filled day of working together. The
committee planned a variety of activities in which the parents and their children could come
together to create art projects and create educational games that could be played at home. The
parents and their children also provided a service to the school by decorating bulletin boards
and painting benches that would be used in the classrooms. Parent workshops, on a variety of
topics such as “Reading Aloud to Your Child”, were also held, and based on the surveys that
were completed at the end of each of the retreats, the parents felt that the workshops and
planned activities were very much worthwhile,
Field Trips and Outdoor Education: Field trips continue to be an important way to further
integrate studies to the world and to utilize or proximity to some of the world’s finest museums,
performing arts venues, and monuments. Each Year every grade takes about 2 — 3 trips to
provide rich and interactive primary experiences to supplement their studies. Some examples of
the exciting field trips this past year were the third grade trip to the Great Swamp Outdoor
Education Center to observe Eastern Woodland animals in their natural habitat, a fourth grade
trip to the Bronx Zoo to observe arctic animal, and visit to Kids Camp for all grades to expose
students to outdoor activities.
Kids Corp After School and Summer Program: The mission of Kids Corporation’s Kids School
initiative is to improve the academic preparation and educational motivation of elementary
school children in Newark. Students attend the after-school program every school day from
3:00-6:00pm for structured, engaging academic lessons in reading, language arts, mathematics,
science, geography and history. Homework assistance and advanced augmentation of the
regular school day’s lessons are included each day. The classes are taught by experienced head
teachers in addition to volunteer teacher-assistants from local colleges, who double as mentors
and role models.

During the summer, over 100 students attended the summer academic program from
Monday through Friday for 7 hours each day. The educational component features hands-on,
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interdisciplinary learning at all levels, using a theme-based curriculum in reading, language arts,
math, science, and Newark history. Reading is heavily stressed and writing is incorporated into
every subject.

The students go on educational and cultural adventure trips each week to supplement
classroom lessons with experiential learning, including five trips to Kids Summer Camp for a full
day of nature studies, hiking, leadership and teamwork games, fine arts, and pool and field
recreation. Every student receives a free medical, dental and vision exam each summer, and we
coordinate and provide follow-up care.

With support from the Victoria Foundation we were able to launch the NECCS professional
development program in August 2009 with an intensive two-week professional development
workshop called the Summer Professional Development Institute (Summer Institute). High
quality staff developers with expertise in the areas of focus were brought on staff to train our
instructional staff on the following topics: community building, differentiated instruction,
collaborative team teaching, backward design, and the subjects of reading and math. Each year,
the Summer Institute will address the growing needs of the staff and school.

Through a strong partnership with Family Intervention Services, we were able to host workshops
for parents. NECCS families had the opportunity to attend a six session course to learn a variety
of hands-on parenting skills that apply to everyday situations with their children using the
evidence based Active Parenting curriculum conducted by Family Intervention Services, Inc.
(FIS). Seven to ten parents participated in six effective parenting training sessions that convened
every Tuesday from November 7, 2010 to February 22, 2011. Parents were invited to gain
expertise from parenting professionals and other parents as well as share their knowledge. The
sessions began with a home style dinner. Parents would then talk about how they worked to
implement the ideas and strategies from the last session. The Family Intervention Coordinator
would show a slide show and discuss the reading for that evening. At the end of the meeting,
parents would think about what they wanted to try and how to overcome the challenges of
childrearing. The parents brought their children, and FIS provided childcare. The children played
games and completed homewaork as their parents carved out time for adult conversation and
camaraderie. The parents were extremely supportive of one another, telling concerns,
successes, and areas in development. They shared stories about teenagers, sleepovers, dating,
computer oversight, and balancing unconditional love with clear boundaries. Parents were
committed and diligent, coming early and staying late each and every Tuesday.

NECCS was able to host four Saturday Family Retreats during the 2010-2011 school year through
grant funding. The family retreats were one way in which we were able to begin the work of
bridging the gap between the community and NECCS. As we continue to expand, we are looking
forward to adding on to the topics covered during these Retreats in order to continue
empowering all those who attend- from parents, teachers, and students to the larger
surrounding community.

With funding provided by a grant from the Healthcare Foundation of New Jersey, NECCS was
able to hire a social worker and implement the Second Step program in order to provide in-
school, integrated, and individualized mental health services for students who are at risk of
being classified and “disruptive” students who are also struggling, but not at immediate risk of
being classified. A skilled practitioner from Family Connections supported students and teachers
by counseling students individually and in groups, implementing the Second Step program, and
offering both embedded classroom modeling and workshop training to teachers.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Administration of the Charter School is
responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to
ensure that the assets of the Charter School are protected from loss, theft or misuse and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
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financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
administration.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the Charter School is responsible
for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place for compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control
structure is subject to periodic evaluation by the Charter School administration.

As part of the Charter School’'s single audit described earlier, tests are made to
determine the adequacy of internal controls, including that portion related to federal and
state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the Charter School has
complied with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the Charter
School maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to
ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget.
Annual appropriated budgets are required for the General Fund and the Special
Revenue Fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is presented in
the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase
commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled
or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. There were
amounts to be reappropriated at June 30, 2011.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The Charter School's accounting records
reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the Charter School is
organized on the basis of funds each of which maintains a self-balancing set of
accounts. These funds are explained in the "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements".

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: At June 30, 2011 the Charter School had no outstanding
debt.

CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the Charter School is guided in large
part by state statute as detailed in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements”. The
Charter School has an investment policy that requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law
requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in
New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

RISK _MANAGEMENT: The Charter School carries various forms of insurance,
including, but not limited to, general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/
collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, student accident
insurance and fidelity bonds.




9. INDEPENDENT AUDIT: State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of DAK
CPA was selected by the Board of Trustees. In addition to meeting the requirements set
forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements of the
Single Audit Act of 1984 and the related OMB Circular A-133 and State Treasury
Circular Letter 04-04 OMB. The auditors’ report on the basic financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are
included in the single audit section of this report.

10. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: 1| would like to express my appreciation to the Board of
Trustees of the Newark Educators’ Community Charter School for their concern in
providing fiscal accountability of the Charter School and thereby contributing their full
support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation.

Respectfully submitted,

Hector Berrios Joyce Kornegay
Business Administrator Principal
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David A. Kaplan, CPA, RMA dakcparma.com dakcparma@gmail.com
512 Marvin Drive Phone (732) 241-1632
Long Branch, NJ 07740 Fax (732) 870-2797

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Newark Educator's Community Charter School
Newark, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Newark Educator's
Community Charter School, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively
comprise the Charter School's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Charter School's management. OQur responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Newark Educator's Community Charter School as of June
30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for
the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 8,
2011 on our consideration of Newark Educator's Community Charter School’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information are not a required
part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - CONTINUED

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 11 through 18 and 45 through
47 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Newark Educator's Community Charter School's basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining fund financial statements and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedules of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audit of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations” and New Jersey OMB'’s Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy
for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid”, and are also not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements and schedules of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
the relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

DaK C
DAK CPA

Certified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

=,

David A Kaplan ™
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00911

Long Branch, New Jersey
October 8, 2011
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Newark Educators' Community Charter Schools’ financial performance
provides an overall review of the Charter School's financial activities for the fiscal period ended June 30,
2011. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Charter School’s financial performance
as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements and notes to enhance their
understanding of the Charter School’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2010-2011 are as follows:
In total, net assets totaled $240,709 as of June 30, 2011, an increase of $166,409 over 2010.

General revenues accounted for $3,427,828 in revenue or 87% of all revenues. Program specific
revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions accounted for $523,561 or 13% of total revenues of $3,951,390.

The Charter School had $3,784,980 in expenses; only $523,561 of these expenses was offset by
program specific charges for services, grants or contributions.

Among major funds, the General Fund had $3,589,394 in revenues and $3,362,684 in expenditures.
After transfers to the Enterprise Fund of $59,000, the General Fund's fund balance is $218,434.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand Newark Educators Community Charter School as
a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly
detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
Charter School, presenting both an aggregate view of the Charter School’s finances and longer-term view
of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds,
these statements tell how services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending. The fund financial statements also look at the Charter School’'s most significant funds. In the
case of Newark Educator's Community Charter School, the General Fund is by far the most significant.
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Reporting the Charter School as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

This document contains all funds used by the Charter School to provide programs and activities, viewing
the Charter School as a whole and reports the culmination of all financial transactions. The report
answers the question, “How We Did Financially During Fiscal Year 2011?" The Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities provides the summary. The statements include all assets and liabilities
using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.
This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Charter School's net assets and changes in those assets. This change
in net assets is important because they report on whether the Charter School's financial position has
improved or diminished.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the Charter School is divided into two
kinds of activities:

Governmental activities — All of the Charter School’s programs and services are reported here including,
instruction and support services.

Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover all
the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service Enterprise Fund is reported as a
business activity.

Reporting the Charter School’'s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statement

The Analysis of the Charter School’'s major funds is located in the Required Supplementary Information -
Part Il section. Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the Charter School's major
funds. The Charter School's major governmental funds are the General Fund and Special Revenue
Fund.

Governmental Funds

The Charter School’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of the funds and balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These funds
are reported using a modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the Charter School’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental
funds is reconciled in the financial statements.
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Enterprise Fund
The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities. The reporting of this
fund did not change with the conversion to GASB 34.
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the Charter School-wide and fund financial statements.
The Charter School as a Whole
The Statement of Net Assets provides the financial perspective of the Charter School as a whole.
Table 1 provides a summary of the Charter School’s net assets for 2011 in comparison to 2010.
Table 1

Statements of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2011 and 2010

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 378,125 % 255905 $ 12,190 $ $ 390,315 $ 255,905
Capital Assets, Net 20,720 23,157 20,720 23,157
Total Assets $ 398,845 § 279,062 $ 12190 § 3 411,035 §$ 279,062
Liabilities
Other Liabilities $ 159,691  § 204,762 § 10,635 $ $ 170,326  § 204,762
Total Liabilities $ 159691 § 204,762 % 10,635 § $ 170,326 § 204,762
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt $ 20,720 3 23,157 § $ $ 20,720 § 23,157
Restricted 112,354 31,723 112,354 31,723
Unrestricted 106,080 19,420 1,555 107,635 19,420

Total Net Assets $ 239,154 § 74,300 § 1,555 % $ 240,709 $ 74,300

The Charter School's combined net assets were $240,709 on June 30, 2011.
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Table 2 shows the comparative changes in net assets from fiscal year 2011 to 2010 and the associated

variances.

Revenues:

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Grants and Contributions

General Revenues:

Local Tax Levies
Grants and Entitlements
Other

Total Revenues

Program Expense:
Instruction
Support Services:
School Administrative
Services
General and Business
Administration Services
Enterprise Activities

Total Expense

Increase/(Decrease) in
Net Assets Before Transfers

Transfers

Increase/(Decrease) in
Net Assets After Transfers

Beginning Net Assets

Ending Net Assets

Governmental Activities

Local tax levies made up 10.4% of total revenues for the fiscal year 2011. Federal, state and local grants
and miscellaneous revenues accounted for another 89.6%.

The total cost of all programs and services was $3,593,828.

expenditures.

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Table 2

Changes in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Activities

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$ 12,033 21,987 8 12,033 $ 21,937
389,855 336,414 121,673 20,000 511,528 356,414
412,851 322,545 412,851 322,545
2,931,804 2,293,962 2,931,804 2,293,962
83,172 184,202 1 83,173 184,202
3,817,682 3,137,123 $ 133,707 41,937 $ 3,951,389 $ 3,179,060
1,724,138 1,225,874 $ $ 1,724,138 $ 1,225874
1,093,121 1,030,966 1,093,121 1,030,966
776,569 661,260 661,260
191,152 186,660 191,152 186,660
3,593,828 2,918,100 $ 191,152 186,660 $ 3,008,411 $ 3,104,760
223,854 219,023 $ (57,445) (144,723) & 942,978 $ 74,300
(59,000) (144,723) 59,000 144,723 0
164,854 74,300 $ 1,555 0 $ 942,978 $ 74,300
74,300 0 $ 0 0 $ 47,300 $ 0
239,154 74,300 $ 1,555 0 $ 990,278 $ 74,300
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NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the Charter School’'s business-type activities were comprised of charges for services and
contributions. The Charter School received no federal or state reimbursements for school food service.

Food service expenses exceeded revenues by $122,921. Charges for services which is the amount paid
by students and other patrons for daily food service represent 100% of total revenues.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the comparative total cost of services and the net cost of
services for fiscal year 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Table 3
Total and Net Cost of Services
For the Fiscals Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
% %
2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change

Instruction $ 1,750,218 $ 1,225874 100% $ 1,736,116 $ 889,460 100%
Support Services: -

School Administration 1,084,877 1,030,966 100% 894,409 1,030,966 100%

General and Business Administration 770,714 661,260 100% 776,569 661,260 100%

Total Expenses $ 3605809 $ 2918100 100% $ 3,407,094 $ 2,581,686 100%

Instruction expenses include activities directly associated with the teaching of pupils and the interactions
between teacher and student.

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the Charter School.

The Charter School’s Funds

Information about the Charter School’s major funds is located in the Required Supplementary Information
~ Part I section. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used to account for these funds. All
governmental funds had total revenue of $3,8181,102 and total expenditures of $3,591,392. The net
increase in fund balance for the year was $167,291, after transfers out to the Enterprise Fund of $59,000.
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY SCHOOL

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report,
the Charter School continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following
schedule presents a summary of the revenues of the governmental funds for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2011 and 2010, and the amount and percentage of increase and decreases in relation to prior year
revenues.

Summary of Revenues

Amount of Percent
Years Ended Increase/ Increase/
Revenue 2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Local Sources $ 504,344 § 528,297 $ (23,953) -5%
State Sources 3,130,516 2,293,962 836,554 36%
Federal Sources 183,242 314,864 (131,622) -42%
Total $ 3818102 $ 3137123 $ 680,979 22%
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

The following schedule presents a summary of governmental fund expenditures for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Summary of Expenditures

Amount of Percent
Years Ended Increase increase
Expenditures 2011 2010 (Decrease) {Decrease)
Current Expense:
Instruction $ 1,492,033 $ 1,225,362 $ 266,671 22%
Undistributed
Expenditures 2,111,337 1,691,519 419,818 25%
Capital Outlay 0 24,376 (24,376) -100%
Total 3 3603370 $ 2941257 % 662,113 23%

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The Charter School’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant

budgeted fund is the General Fund.

During the course of the fiscal year 2011, the Charter School amended its General Fund budget as
needed. The Charter School uses program-based budgeting and the budgeting systems are designed to
tightly control total program budgets but provide flexibility for program management. The School
Business Manager, Principal, and Board of Trustees must approve transfers from one program to
another. Transfers were required due to:

= Staffing changes based on student needs.

= Changes in appropriations to prevent budget overruns, as well as to effect account coding
corrections.

While the Charter School’s final budget for the General Fund anticipated that revenues and expenditures
would roughly equal, the actual results for the year shows an increase in surplus of $167,291.

-17 -



NEWARK EDUCATORS'COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2011 the Charter School had $24,376 invested in building improvements.
Table 4 shows fiscal 2011 balances compared to 2010.

Table 4
Capital Assets
as of June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010

Buildings and Improvements 3 24,376 $ 24,376
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 3,656 1,219
Total Net Assets 3 20,720 $ 23,157

Overall, net capital assets decreased $3,657 from fiscal year 2010 to fiscal year 2011,
For the Future

The Newark Educators' Community Charter School’s financial position at the end of this first year was
stable. 1t is the intention of the School, with the assistance of all its contributors and volunteers, to move
ahead in fiscal year 2011 and thereafter, to securing financial assistance from the community and
benefactors which will assist the School with funding of programs. The Charter School's priority is to
increase fund balance to a sufficient level in order to meet the ever changing needs of its students.

The Charter School's major focus for the fiscal year 2011 is to continue to develop relationships with the
community of Newark and surrounding areas for support of their efforts in providing a comprehensive
education for all their students.

Contacting the Charter School’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Charter School’s finances and to show the Charter School’s accountability for the money
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, you may contact
Hector Berrios, Business Administrator at Newark Educators’ Community Charter School, 17-19 Crawford
Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102,

-18 -



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CHARTER SCHOOL-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Exhibit A-1

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 280,967 $ 11,883 $ 292 850
Receivables - Net 85,583 11,882 97,465
Internal Balances 11,575 (11,575)
Capital Assets, Net

Being Depreciated 20,720 20,720
Total Assets 3 308,845 § 12,190 § 411,035
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 37,867 % 10,635 $ 48,502
Payables to Other Governments 48,708 48,708
Due to Other Funds 562 562
Deferred Revenue 72,554 72,554
Total Liabilities $ 159,691 § 10635 % 170,326
NET ASSETS
invested in Capital Assets - Net of

Related Debt $ 20,720 $ 20,720
Restricted for:

Other Purposes 112,354 112,354
Unrestricted 106,080 $ 1,555 107,635
Total Net Assets $ 239154 § 1655 § 240,709

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



Exhibit B-1

NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 274649 % 6,318 $ 280,967
Receivables from Other Governments 18,180 67,403 85,583
Due from Other Funds 11,575 11,575
Total Assets $ 304,404 $ 73,721 $ 378,124
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 36,700 $ 1,166 $ 37,866
Due to Other Funds 562 562
Due to Other Governments 48,708 48,708
Deferred Revenue 72,555 72,555
Total Liabilities 85,970 73,721 159,691
FUND BALANCES
Assigned:
Year-encumbrances $ 12,354 $ 12,354
Designated for Subsequent Year's
Expenditures 100,000 100,000
Unassigned 106,080 106,080
Total Fund Balances 218,434 218,434
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 304,404 $ 73,721

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported in the funds. The costs of the assets is $24,376 and the

accumulated depreciation is $3,656. 20,720
Net assets of governmental activities $ 239,154

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

COUNTY OF ESSEX

Exhibit B-2

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levies
Miscellaneous
Private Sources
Total Local Sources
State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current expense:

Instruction
Undistributed expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing (Uses):
Canellation of Prior Year's Receivable
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance July 1

Fund Balance June 30

$

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds

412,851 $ $ 412,851
46,027 46,027
45,466 45 466

458,878 45,466 504,344
3,130,516 3,130,516
183,242 183,242

3,589,394 228,708 3,818,102
1,296,733 195,300 1,492,033
2,065,951 33,408 2,099,359
3,362,684 228,708 3,591,392
226,710 226,710
(419) (419)
{59,000) (59,000)
(59,419) (59,419)
167,291 167,291
51,143 51,143
218,434 $ $ 218,434

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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Exhibit B-3

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 167,291

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.

Depreciation Expense $ (2,437)
Capital Outlays - (2,437)
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 164,854

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS



NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
State Sources
Federal Sources
Total Current Assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Interfund Payable
Accounts Payable
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

COUNTY OF ESSEX

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major Program

Food

Service Totals
$ 11,883 11,883
201 201
11,681 11,681
23,765 23,765
$ 23,765 23,765
$ 11,574 11,574
10,635 10,635
$ 22,209 22,209
$ 1,555 1,555
$ 1,655 1,655

Exhibit B-4

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

COUNTY OF ESSEX

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:

Daily Sales - Nonreimbursable Programs $

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss
Nonoperating Revenues:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program
National School Breakfast Program
National After Schcol Snack Program
Miscellaneous

Total Nonoperating Revenues
Loss before Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers:

Operating Transfer In - General Fund
income - Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement

Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Major Program

Food Total
Service Enterprise

12,033 $ 12,033
12,033 12,033
70,574 70,574

789 789
119,789 119,789
191,152 191,152
(179,119) (179,119)
1,892 1,892
91,407 91,407
16,497 16,497
11,877 11,877

1 1

121,674 121,674
(57,445) (57,445)
59,000 59,000
1,555 1,555

$ 1,555 $ 1,555
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

COUNTY OF ESSEX

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees

Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
State Sources

Federal Sources

Other Sources

Operating Subsidies and Transfers

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances - Beginning of Year
Balances - End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used for
Operating Activities

Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net
Cash Used for Operating Activities:
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
increase in Accounts Payable
Increase in Interfund Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

Exhibit B-6

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major Program

Food Total
Service Enterprise

$ 12,033 12,033
(70,574) (70,574)
(98,369) (98,369)
(156,910) (156,910)

1,692 1,692

108,100 108,100

59,000 59,000

168,792 168,792

3 1 1
11,883 11,883

$ 11,883 11,883
$ (179,119) (179,119)
$ 10,635 10,635
11,574 11,574

22,209 22,209
$ (156,910) (156,910)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



Exhibit B-7

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Agency
Fund

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 16,905
Due from Other Funds 562
Total Assets $ 17,467
LIABILITIES
Accrued Wages - Summer Payroll $ 9,467
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 3,593
Total Liabilities $ 13,060
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims and Other Purposes $ 4,407

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

COUNTY OF ESSEX

Exhibit B-8

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Additions

Contributions:

Plan Members

Total Additions

Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Unemployment
Compensation Trust

S__ 4407
S__ 4407
$ 4,407
$ 4,407

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



1.

NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

DESCRIPTION OF THE CHARTER SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

The Newark Educators’ Community Charter School ("Charter School") is an instrumentality of the
State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The Board of Trustees (the
“Board”) consists of appointed officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the Charter School.
An Educational Director is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative controf of
the Charter School. The Charter School was approved by the New Jersey Department of Education
on July 9, 2009.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations
that are included to insure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary
government consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate
from the Charter School. For the Charter School, this includes general operations, food service and
student related activities of the Charter School.

The primary criterion for including activities within the Charter School’s reporting entity, as set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, is the degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the Charter School. Oversight
responsibility includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of
management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The
combined financial statements include all funds of the Charter School over which the Board exercises
operating control. The Charter School educates grades K-3 students and is located in Newark.
There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as
described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the Charter School is not includable in any
other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Charter School also applies
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, to its governmental activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements. The most significant of the Charter School's accounting policies are
described below.

A. Basis of Presentation

The Charter School's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements,
including a statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements
that provide a more detailed level of financial information.

1. Charter School District - Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
Charter School as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds.
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NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

1.

Charter School District-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of
the Charter School at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between
direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the Charter School’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
service, program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by
the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues of the Charter School, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent
to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of
the Charter School.

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the Charter School segregates transactions related to certain Charter School
functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance.

Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the Charter School
at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major
funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column.

B. Fund Accounting

The Charter School uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is
defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

1.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund
assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the Charter School's
major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Charter School.
It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for
in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional
or noninstructional equipment that are classified in the Capital Outlay subfund.

-30-



NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Fund Accounting (Continued)

1. Governmental Funds (Continued)

General Fund {Continued)

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the Charter School
includes budgeted Capital Outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles
as they pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be used
to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in
such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New
Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that
result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings,
improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of
buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred
from and to Current Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund — The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major
capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

2. Proprietary Fund Type

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, financial
position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those
similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary
fund of the Charter School:

Enterprise Fund — The Enterprise Fund is utilized to account for operations that are
financed and operated in @ manner similar to private business enterprises — where the
intent of the Charter School is that the costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and
indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the Charter School has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Fund Accounting (Continued)

2. Proprietary Fund Type (Continued)

The Charter School's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund and the
After School Program Fund.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or “capital maintenance”
measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or
noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Their
reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and
unreserved retained earnings, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating statements
present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an
expense against their operations. There are no fixed assets within the proprietary funds.

3. Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds — The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets
held by the Charter School in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Agency Funds — Agency Funds are used to account for the assets that the Charter
School holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency Funds are custodial in nature

- and do not involve measurement of results of operations. Agency Funds include payroll
and student activities funds.

C. Measurement Focus

1.

Charter School District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Charter
School are included on the Statement on Net Assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus (Continued)

2. Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources)
and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-
wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
district-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
With this measurement, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present
increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

D. Basis of Accounting

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating
results of all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both
measurable and available. "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined
and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current period. State equalization monies are recognized as revenue
during the period in which they are appropriated. A one-year availability period is used for
revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are recognized in
the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on
general long-term debt which are recorded when due.

The Charter School receives a portion of the local tax levy and state aid from the local school
district based upon the number of enrolied students. The State Department of Education in
conjunction with the local school district revises the amounts fo be received by the Charter School
two times a year based upon the enrollment counts on October 15, and the last day of the school
year. The local tax levy and state aid are susceptible to accrual. The Charter School records the
entire anticipated local tax levy to be received at the start of the fiscal year based upon the June 1
enroliment count and certification from the New Jersey State Department of Education, since the
revenue is both measurable and available. The Charter School is entitled to receive moneys
under the established payment schedule, which is revised after each enrollment count date, and
the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”. At June 30, 2011, the Charter
School had a liability of $ 48,708 that represented amounts that had been received but were due
to the Newark Public School District based upon the current year final enroliment count.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Basis of Accounting (Continued)

In its accounting and financial reporting, the Charter School follows the pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor organizations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The Charter
School's proprietary funds have elected not to apply the standards issued by FASB after
November 30, 19809.

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are
recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized when
they are incurred.

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general and special
revenue funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and are voted upon
at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the
modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described later. The
legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item
accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the
minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.JA.C. 8:20-2A.2(m)1. Transfers of appropriations
may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year subject to the
limitation of P.L. 2004 c73 (S1701). The Board of Trustees did not make any material
supplemental budgetary appropriations during the fiscal year.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAP) with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last
state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
refated revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F. Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open
encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the Charter School has received
advances, are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end. There
were no open encumbrances at June 30, 2011, in the special revenue fund.

Open encumbrances in the general fund at June 30, 2011 were $12,354.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be

made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified
budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost
plus accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with
maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are
stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the Charter School is required to deposit public funds in public depositories
protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.JS.A. 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a
public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories
include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks
the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having
a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public
funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it
has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount
of their deposits to the Governmental Units.

H. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

Inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method.

. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges
for goods or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the Charter School and that are due
within one year.

-36 -



NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

J.

Capital Assets

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are
reported in the governmental activities column of the district-wide statement of net assets but are
not reported in the fund financial statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as
of the date received. The Charter School maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000.
Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not.

All reported capital assets except for land are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 20 - 40 years
Furniture and Equipment 5-10vyears
Vehicles 3 -5 years

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation
and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are aftributable to services already
rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Charter
School and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits.
Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event
that is outside the control of the Charter School and its employees, are accounted for in the
period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences
is in the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These amounts are
recorded in the account “compensated absences payable” in the fund from which the employees
who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The noncurrent portion of the liability is not
reported.

The entire sick leave and vacation leave liabilities are reported on the district-wide financial
statements.

The charter school had no compensated absences as of June 30, 2011.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the district-wide financial
statements.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in
full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the governmental funds.
However, the noncurrent portion of compensated absences and mortgage payable that will be
paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to
the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable, available financial
resources.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their
use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the Charter School or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash that has been received but not yet
earned.

Fund Equity

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for appropriation for expenditure or
legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future
use of financial resources.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

The Charter School's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. The New Jersey Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to maintain
additional collateral in the amount of 5% of the average public deposits and to deposit these amounts
with the Federal Reserve Bank for all deposits not covered by the FDIC.

At June 30, 2011, the book value of the Charter School's deposits was $309,755. The bank balances of
the Charter School were $383,857 of that, $250,000 was covered by FDIC insurance.

Bank

Depository Account Balance

Payroll $ 51,207
Unemployment 4,100
Food Service 25,332
Agency 4,934
Summer Pay 9,467
General 288,817

§__ 383857

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not
be returned to it. The Charter School does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June,
2011 the Charter School's bank balance of $133,857 was exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The Charter School is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities
authorized by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other
obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States of America,
Government Money Market Mutual Funds, bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or
other obligations of the local unit or units within which the school district is located, Local Government
investment pools, and agreements or the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in
accordance with the above statute.

As of June 30, 2011, the Charter School had no investments.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2010 Additions June 30, 2011
Being depreciated:
Building and Improvements 24376 3 - $ 24,376
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,218) (2,438) (3,656)
Net Capital Assets $ 23,158 $ (2,438) $ 20,720

The proprietary fund type had no capital assets at June 30, 2011. Depreciation expense for
governmental activities held assets was $2,438 for 2011. In the Statement of Activities, depreciation
expense was allocated to the following functions: Instructional $994 and Support Services $1,444.

LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Charter School leases the premises at 17-19 Crawford Street, Newark, New Jersey. Those
premises house all Charter School educational and administrative functions. Under a sublease
agreement dated April 22, 2009, the Charter School is the subtenant of those premises.

The sublease agreement requires remaining annual rental payments as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Amount
2012 $ 576,395
2013 577,350
2014 578,334

$ 1,732,079
Rent paid during the fiscal period ended June 30, 2011 was $519,119.
The Charter School approved the leasing of three digital multi-purpose copiers during the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2011. The lease term was for 48 months and the minimum monthly payments are
$836.73. Remaining annual lease payments are as follows:

Year Ended

June 30 Amount
2012 $ 10,041
2013 10,041
2014 10,041
2015 5,857

$ 35,979
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6. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans: Substantially all of the Charter School's employees are covered by either the
Public Employees' Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund, cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans, which have been established by state statute and
are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the
State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial
report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Public
Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be
obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,
08625, or via the internet.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF): The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was
established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement
benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers'
Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special
funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of
New Jersey on behalf of the Charter School and the system's other related non-contributing
employers.  Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the
professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of
Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS): The Public Employees’ Retirement System
(PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide
retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Public
Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another state-administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions: The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A.
43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service,
except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement benefits for age and
service are available at age 60 and are generally determined to be 1/55" of the final average salary
for each year of service credit, as defined. Final average salary equals the average salary for the
final three years of service prior to retirement (or highest three years' compensation if other than the
final three years). Members may seek early retirement after achieving 25 years of service credit or
they may elect deferred retirement after achieving ten years of service in which case benefits would
begin the first day of the month after the member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF and
PERS provides for specified medical benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of
qualified service, as defined, or under the disability provisions of the System.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit,
become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before
retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

-49 -



NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements: The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of
1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members
and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of
New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide for employee contributions of 5.5% of employees’
covered payroll. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF
and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for both cost-of-living
adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Pension of APC
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed
June 30, 2011 $ - 100%
June 30, 2010 - 100%
June 30, 2009 - 100%

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF
(Paid on-behalf of the Charter School)

Annual Percentage
Year Pension of APC
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed
June 30, 2011 3 77,724 100%
June 30, 2010 - 100%
June 30, 2009 - 100%
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6. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements {(Continued)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the State of New Jersey contributed $77,724 to the TPAF
for post-retirement medical benefits on behalf of the Charter School. Also, in accordance with
N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Charter School $120,988 during the
year ended June 30, 2011 for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF
members, as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts have been included in the financial
statements, and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules as
revenues and expenditures in accordance with GASB 27.

7. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required TPAF and PERS, respectively, to fund post-retirement
medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service
or on a disability retirement.  P.L. 2007, ¢. 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-
retirement medical benefits through TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the
pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State
employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2010, there were 87,288 retirees
eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through
contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c. 62. Funding of post-retirement medical
premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994
with an additional contribution beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L.. 1992 ¢. 126, which provides free health
benefits to members of PERS, and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $126.3 million toward Chapter
126 benefits for 14,050 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2010.

8. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY
The Charter School receives its support from federal, state and local governments. A significant

reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, would have an impact on the Charter School's
programs and activities.
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NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Charter School offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b), administered by AXA Financial.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Charter School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The Charter School maintains commercial insurance coverage
for property, liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage
can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance: The Charter School has elected to fund its
New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method".
Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for
benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The Charter School
is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of District contributions,
employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the
Charter School's trust fund for the current and previous two years:-

Employee Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Balance

2010-2011 $ 4,407 $ 4,407

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Due toffrom other funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Enterprise Fund $ 11,575

Trust and Agency Fund General Fund 562
§___ 12137

The General Fund/Enterprise Fund interfund resulted from the General Fund’s contribution to the
operations of the Enterprise Fund. Liquidation of this interfund balance is expected within the next
fiscal year. The Trust and Agency Fund/General Fund interfund resulted from the interaction
between these two funds.

- 44 -



12.

13.

14.

15.

NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FUND BALANCE
General Fund — Of the $206,243 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2011, there is $12,354

assigned for encumbrances, $100,000 assigned and designated for subsequent year's expenditures
which is anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2012 and $106,080 unassigned.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Charter School is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a Charter
School of its size and scope of operation. In the opinion of the Charter School's Attorney the potential

claims against the School not covered by insurance policies would not materially affect the financial
condition of the School.

RECENTLY ENACTED REGULATIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 78 P.L. 2011 increases in employee contributions for pension and heaith
insurance are scheduled to commence on October 1, 2011.

The provisions of GASB 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”
have been implemented during this fiscal year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Charter School has evaluated all subsequent events occurring through the date of the

independent auditor's report which is October 6, 2011. No events were determined to require
disclosure.

- 45 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION —~ PART |



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES



£elee $ ¢£8l'962'L ¢ 9o¥6lEl $ £G£66 eii'vee’L $
vZ6 9/¥'9l 0oV L1 oov'eL 000°S
66 5002 00L'2 001'2
294t 109'69 £9¢'/9 £90'92 0081y
z89'2 €191 56¥'61 GGyl 0009
L Z5Y'y £GPy £GPy
o9cL'g 816'c8 $60'06 $65'c8 0069
cel'LL 805°201'L LWwo'cLLyL (612°LY) 098'091°L
6y1'6le $6E'686°E SYZVIEE G69'981 066°281°€
Z1.°861 915’081’ 708'1€6'C [a%ed} 19928272
vZL'Ll ANV
886'0CL £86'021

76’69 76’69 PPS'GY

88/°101 88/'101 (g6¢'2) LrL'voL

$85'9p $85'9% (628'y) 66608

988'/11'2 888'211'2 12868 196'z£9'2
LSV 9/8'86¥ Lyy Zry 2852y 688'66¢
1ev'9L 120°9¥ 08562 08562

$ 1882y $ 1682y $  Z79B'ZL 688'66¢ $
1eNOY O} jeuld {enpy ymmUJm SI3jsuel} uwmﬁzm
SOUBLIEA jeuld 18bpng feuibug

€40 | {98yg
L-0 Haiux3

3

102 "0¢ INNT 03ANT ¥VIA 3HL €04

GNN4 TVYHINID
FTNAIHOS NOSRIVAINOD AYVIZODANg

X=883 40 ALNNOD

TOOHJS H3LYVHO ALINNWINOD .SHOLVYONGI YHVYMIN

uoioNLsul (2104

osuadxa snosuelaosip
$HOOQIXB |
so|jddns jeieusn
S90IAM9S paseyaind 1ayi0
SBOIAIS [BOIUYOSY/IRU0ISSa)0.Id PasBYDIng
UOIONIISUL 10} SaLIB|BS Jayl0
si8yoee] Jo saueeg
:uoRoNniIsU|
‘pund {esausn
EEE ]

SoNnuUsAsY 8104
S80UN0G alels - {810

(pejebpng-uou) SUORNQUIUCY pun4 Alnuuy
pue uoIsuad $48Yyoes] jeyeg-uQ
(ps1ebpng-uou)
SUOHNGUILOYD AIINDSS [B190S 4Ydl pasinquiey
pie Jand-uoN
pre Ajunosg
pie [eoucBajes uoneonps [eoedg
(aleys s1e)s - saIAs] (200 PlB UOHEZIBNDT
1$90IN0G 9JE18

$90IN0S {8007 - 810

SNOBUE||SOSHN

SBIAB] XE]} 8O0
1$801N08 |00
SONUSASY

- 46 -



-47 -

(169 ¥89'z9¢'e 10g'18¢e'c 166'¢61 066'/81°¢ pun jeisusb |ejo}
{r8eee) 1666002 6£0'290°Z 96596 LIEY'€96°L saunypuadxs painquIsIpun gl
(zis'881) AVAT
(CZINI) AN (pa1abpng-uou) suolnguUIueD pund Aunuuy
pue uoisua4 sJoyoesj jeysg-uQ
(886'0Z1) 886'0Z1 (pejabpng-uou)
sSuolNgIuoY btzoww [BID0S 4V L pssinguiay
oov'oct 1ee'ies 6612801 11629 889'vZ0'L $801n8s Joddns (ejo
Gz6 8€5C cay'e €O’ 0001 osusdxa SnosuR(aOSIA
¥68'y 901 oY 000'sy 0006y {Auoutoele pue jeay) sisod ABleuy
s¥e'e G¥8'e G¥8'e [OOUDS WO/0} URY] JBYIO - uoHeHodSUBI |
Poz'cl IR AN £02'92 L02'2 000'vZ sieusjew pue sayddng
zZov'ls oLe'or 812'€01 81.'89 000°6¢ Ayopy pue Ayjigey ‘Ausdosd oy soueinsu)
0L¥'28 8¢6'LL 008'sy 8¢1'8e saojaes Apedold paseyoind Jsyio
8EY'E 618'6/5 862'6.5 86222 000'255 sBuipling pue pue| jo [gjusy
€L1'8 912'9 68¥%'9l (119 000°24 seoIAIas paseyoind Jayio
296'6Z 6.1'61 Wiy (652'1) 000'9Y S3OIAISS [BDIUYDBY/[RUOISSSj0Id pOsSBYDINg
Wiz 66€°141 ovseel (010'82) 066'142 soueleg
s@01A9s Yoddng
826'8¢ 206'GE6 9¢8'v/6 /80°9€ 67.78€6 SAJRASIUIIDE (B0 |
Y 19v"L /£88 (G 0020l asuadxe snosug|sosIy
SLy'e SLP'Z (8852 000'G SUBOT WBLND UO Jsaisjul
000'41L 000'L4 00001 000t jooyog Jspey) suiebe syuswebpnp
cie'y Gog's 819'¥ (z8e'02) 000'6e sjeusjew pue sejddng
9 8iv's oYL (o15'2) 000'G1L suoydalaysuoyeIUNLUWOYD
Yo £oe'Le 018'2¢ (062'6) 009'8e s918s paseyaind Jayio
819'0 Lzr'eo 8£0°0L 6£9°1LG oov'el SB0IAI9S [BOjUYORY/jeUOISSBj0Id paseyding
908'G1L 68/'8L¢ 165 'vEe (8v2'82) 6ee'e9e $)$00 Jysuaq [ejoL
AN A $  089°06Y Z¥0'c05 $  2Ze8'0p 0LZ'Zov $ uonensiuiwpe - selieleg
BARISIUILRDY
”wm._su_bcmaxm panquisipun
{(ponuijuo)) pund jelauss
Abmzczcoov wmhsu_vcmaxm
BNy 0} jeuld {enioy umm_osm sigisuel] ummvsm
avuBUEA feul 18bpng reubuo

£102 '0¢ IANNT J=3ANT ¥V3A FHL ¥OS
GNNA TVYENED
FTNAIHOS NOSRIVJINOD ANY1TSDang
X38S3 40 ALNNOD

TTOOHOS W3 LAVHD ALINNANOD .SE0LVYONGI MUVM3N

€40 giB8ys
L-0 Haiux3



yEv'8lT $
080°90}
000001
214l $
6/0'6G1 $ vEV'8lC $  /88°¢cy ¢ (9s2'2) $ evlig $
PL1S YLLG PL1G
6.0'651 162'191 (CIYAIN] (95z2'7)
(61¥'69) (617'69)
(000'69) (000°69)
i) 6Ly
867 iC $ oLl'9ze I CTY ) $ (9g2'2) $ $
[enjoy 0] [eul] [ENPY jobpng Sigjsuel] 13bpng
aouelEA euld 1ebpng reulbuQ

€40 Cleaug
L-0 HaQixz

1102 "0€ INNF 3AGNT ¥VIA IHL H04
0NN TVY3INED
FINAIHDS NOSIHVAINOD ANVYIZDanNg
X388d 40 ALNNOD

TOCHOS ¥3LNVHD ALINNININOS .SHOLVYONGT MavMIN

soueeg pun4 peubisseun
sainjipuadxg sJeaA Jusnbasqng Joy pejeubiseq
$S90URIGUINDUT] PUS-IBBA

‘aouejeg pund paubissy

:uonejnjidesay
0g sunp ‘saouejeq pund
L Ainp ‘seduejeq pung
(sesn)/saoinos Bupoueuy
J8Y30 pue seinjipuadxs (Japun)/Ioao $80Inos
Buroueuy Jeyi0 pue senusal Jo (AousiDyEp)/SSEOXT
(sesn)/ssounos Buoueuy J8yjo 8101
puny asudiaiue uj yoyep - Ino Jeoysues Buneiado
ajgenteoal Jeah oud jo uonejeoue)

‘(sesn)/ssoinos Bupueuy 18430

saunjipuadxs
(18pun)/ianc sanuanal jo (Aoueioyep)/sseoxg

-48 -



6/8'St $ 989'0vC $ g90'98e $  (0zg8'LL) G88°/6C
686021 0g8s'sy §8¥'LS G8¥°/G
9/6'L1 8/6'L1 8/6'L1
66021 8ov'ee 10G'Gy L0S'Sy
08z'¢ce 00£°GB1L 08s'gez (0z8'l1) 00v'ore
5/G'61 Ger' vl P90 V€ 196°02 €01
102'¢L 882'vZ BE6'LE (L82'8¢) 02.'9.
000'08 000'0% 000'0§
118901 L2590} 116'901
(B2E°GY) $  989'0¥Z $ go0'98z $ (0z8'tL) 688'/62
(6.£'Sh) 90b'GP SP806 (Z12711) 296201
$ 0zTZ's6l $ o0zz'sel $  (cob) AN
{enjoy 0} [euid Y 1obphg sisjsuer] jebpng
aoueleA leuid 1ebpng jeubuo

-0 Halyxg

1102 '0€ NN IANT AVIA IHI H05
GNNd 3NNIAIY Tvio3dS

FINAIHOS NOSRVJINOOD ANVIIDANg

X883 40 ALNNOD

ssinypuadx3 1o}

$o0jAleg Hoddng |B10]

sleusg ashojdwig
SBOIASS [BOIUYIS | PUB |BUOISSSJ0Id POsBYDIng
:$9018G voddng

UoHoNAISY| |10

selddng jessus9)
SOOIAISG PaseyIng JByl0
uonoONASU| 10§ SBLRES JBYID
siayoes jo ssuees
:uononsy|
Ssinypusaxy

senusAsy [BJo

SO0IN0SG SjBALIY
S80INOG |RIopPs
SBNUSASY

TOOHOS ¥3ALYVHO ALINNIWINOD \.SHOLVYINGT MUVAMIN

-49 -



NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Exhibit C-3

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration of the governmental fund
types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Funds are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records
are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General and Special Revenue Funds from the budgetary basis of accounting
as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to the GAAP basis of
accounting as presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds.

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/inflows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “revenue” from
the budgetary comparison schedule [C-11  § 3,689,394 [C-2] $ 240,686

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in
that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and
the related revenue is recognized:
2010 -
2011 (11,978)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of

revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds B-2] $ 3589394 [B-2] $ 228,708

Uses/outflows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows"
from the budgetary comparison schedule [C-11 § 3,362,684 [C-2] $ 240,686

Difference - Budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies ordered but
not received is reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are

received for financial reporting purposes: -
(11,978)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement

of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds B2 $ 3,362684 [B-2] $ 228,708
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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ENTERPRISE FUND



THE NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-4

THE NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-5

THE NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

THIS STATEMENT 1S NOT APPLICABLE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-6
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

COUNTY OF ESSEX

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accrued Wages - Summer Payroll
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims
and Other Purposes

Exhibit H-1

Unemployment Total

Compensation Agency
Trust Payroll Funds

4,407 12,498 16,905

562 562

4,407 13,060 17,467

9,467 9,467

3,693 3,593

13,060 13,060

4,407 4,407
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

COUNTY OF ESSEX

Additions
Contributions:
Plan Members

Total Additions

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

-54 -

Exhibit H-2

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust Fund

4,407

4,407

4,407

4,407




Exhibit H-4

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance
Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 12,498 $ $ 12,498
Due From Other Funds 562 582
Total Assets 3 13,060 $ $ 13,060
LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and
Withholdings $ 13,060 3 3 13,060
Total Liabilities $ 13,060 3 3 13,060
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)



NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

COUNTY OF ESSEX

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net assets

District-wide
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total charter school net assets

Note:

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. However, only two years of data is available.

{Unaudited)

Exhibit J-1

June 30,

2010 2011
23,157 $ 20,720
31,723 112,354
19,420 106,080
74,300 $ 239,153

$ 1,555
$ 1,555
23,157 $ 20,720
19,420 107,635
74,300 $ 240,709

Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be included until ten years of data is presented.
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NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

COUNTY OF ESSEX

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

{Unaudited)

(accrual basis of accounting)

Expenses
Governmental activities
Instruction
Regular
Support Services:
School Administrative Services
Total governmental activities expenses

Business-type activities:

Food service

After school program
Total business-type activities expense
Total district expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Operating grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Food service
After school program
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total business type activities program revenues
Total district program revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total district-wide net expense

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Property taxes levied for general purposes, net
Grants and contributions
Miscellaneous income
Transfers
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total business-type activities

Total district-wide

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total district

Note:

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. However, only two years of data is available.

June 30,
2010 2011

$ 1,225,874 $ 1,750,218
1,692,226 1,855,590

$ 2,918,100 $ 3,605,808
$ 131,278 $ 191,152

55,382 -
$ 186,660 $ 191,152
$ 3,104,760 $ 3,796,960
$ 336,414 $ 393,932
$ 336,414 $ 393,932
$ 8,357 $ 12,033
13,580 -
20,000 121,673
144,723

$ 186,660 3 133,706
$ 523,074 $ 527,638
$ (2,5681,686) $ (3,211,876)
(57,446)
$ (2,581,686) $ (3,269,322)
$ 322,545 3 412,851
2,283,962 2,931,804

184,202 91,074
(144,723) (59,000)

3 2,655,986 $ 3,376,729
3 $ 1
59,000

$ $ 59,001
$ 2,655,086 3 3,435,730
$ 74,300 $ 164,864
1,555

$ 74,300 3 166,408

Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be included until ten years of data is presented.
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Exhibit J-3

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

June 30,
2010 2011

General Fund
Assigned $ 31,723 $ 112,354
Unassigned 19,420 106,080
Total General Fund $ 51,143 $ 218,434

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue fund
Total All Other Governmental Funds $ $

Note:
GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. However, only two years of data is available.
Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be included until ten years of data is presented.
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Exhibit J-4

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

June 30,
2010 2011

Revenues

Tax levy $ 322545 % 412,851

Miscellaneous 184,202 46,027

Private/Local sources 21,550 45,466

State sources 2,293,962 3,130,516

Federal sources 314,864 183,242
Total revenue $ 3,137,123 % 3,818,102
Expenditures
Instruction

Regular Instruction $ 1,225,362 $ 1,492,033
Support Services:

General administration 661,260 935,908

Other Support Services 1,030,259 1,163,451
Capital outlay 24,376 -
Total expenditures $ 2,941,257 $ 3,591,392
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 195,866 228,710
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers out $ (144,723) $ (59,000)

Cancellation of prior year's receivable (419)
Total other financing sources (uses) $ (144,723) $ (59,419)
Net change in fund balances $ 51,143 § 167,291
Debt service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures 0.00% 0.00%

Source: Charter School Records
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Exhibit J-16

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT SCHOOL EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)

2010 2011

Function/Program

Instruction
Regular 15 18
Special education 1
Other special education
Vocational
Other instruction
Nonpublic school programs
Adult/continuing education programs

Support Services:
Student & instruction related services 2 2
General administration 4 4
School administrative services
Other administrative services
Central services
Administrative Information Technology 1 1
Plant operations and maintenance 1 1
Pupil transportation
Other support services
Special Schools
Food Service 1
Child Care

Total 25 29

Source: District Personnel Records

Note:
GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. However, only two years of data is available.
Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be included until ten years of data is present.
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Exhibit J-18

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

{Unaudited)

2010 2011
District Building
Elementary School
Newark Educators' Community Charter School
Square Feet 28,000 28,000
Capacity (students) 300 300
Enroliment 194 249
Number of Schools 1 1

Source: Charter School Records

-63-



NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
COUNTY OF ESSEX

Exhibit J-20

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2011
(Unaudited)
Coverage Deductible

New Jersey School Board Association Insurance Group
Property
Building and Contents $ 4,730,000 $ 2,500
Valuable Papers and Records
Extra Expense
increased Cost of Contruction/Build. Ord.
Crime/Empl Dishonesty 142,000 5,000
Comprehensive General Liability
General Liablility 1,000,000 5,000
School Leaders Errors & Omissions Coverage 1,000,000 5,000
Electronic Data Processing

Blanket Equipment, Data and Media 200,000 2,500

Computer Virus
Workers Compensation
Professional/Non-Professional 1,000,000
Automobile Coverage
Liability Limit 1,000,000
Student Accident 25,000
Medical Expense Benefit
Commerial Excess Liability
Aggregate Limit Of Liablitity 2,000,000 10,000
Equipment Breakdown Coverage
Boiler and Machinery 200,000 2,500
Public Official Bonds
Hector Berrios, Business Administrator 130,000 1,000
Public Employee Dishonesty 130,000 1,000
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



DAK CPA

David A. Kaplan, CPA, RMA dakcparma.com dakcparma@gmail.com

512 Marvin Drive Phone (732) 241-1632

Long Branch, NJ 07740 Fax (732) 870-2797
Exhibit K-1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Newark Educators’ Community Charter School
Newark, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Trustees of Newark Educators’ Community
Charter School ("Charter School”), in the County of Essex, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Charter School’s basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements
as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Charter School's internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designhing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School's internal
controf over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter
School's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal controt over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Member American institute of Certified Public Accountants
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Exhibit K-1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS-(CONTINUED)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Newark Educator's Community Charter Schools'
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Charter School in a separate report entitled,
Auditor's Management Report on Administrative Findings - Financial, Compliance and Performance dated
October 6, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, the New Jersey
Department of Education, and other federal and state awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not

be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
F ) @
@ ﬁ % {f

DAK CPA
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

David A. Kaplan
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant

PSA Number CS00911

Long Branch, New Jersey
October 6, 2011
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Exhibit K-2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Newark Educators' Community Charter School
Newark, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Newark Educators’ Community Charter School ("Charter School"), Newark,
NJ, with the types of compliance requirements described in OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and
the “New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement’ that are applicable to its major state program for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The Charter School's major state program is identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirement of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the
responsibility of the Charter School's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Charter
School's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, OMB Circular A-133 “Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations” and State of New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy
for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid”. Those standards and circulars require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about The Red Bank Charter School's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Charter School's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Newark Educators' Community Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to its major state program for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011,

Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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Exhibit K-2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04 - CONTINUED

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to state programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Charter School's internal control over compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major state program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Charter School’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely

basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the Charter School’s internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

The Newark Educators’ Community Charter School's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Charter School's responses, and

accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, the New Jersey
Department of Education and other state awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

DAK CPA
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

David A. Kaplan
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00811

Long Branch, New Jersey
October 6, 2011
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Exhibit K-5
Page 1 of 2
NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal awards and state financial assistance programs of
the Board of Trustees of the Newark Educators’ Community Charter School ("Charter School"). The Board of
Trustees is defined in Note 1 to the Charter School's basic financial statements. All federal awards and state
financial assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of federal awards
and state financial assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs
recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of
accounting are described in Note 2(C) to the Charter School's basic financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary
comparison statements or schedules (RSl) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to
demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to-
be recognized in the audit year whereas for GAAP reporting revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year
or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis. The special revenue
fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not,

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is none for the general fund and
none for the special revenue fund. See Note 2 (the Notes to Required Supplementary Information) for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements
on a GAAP basis as follows:
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Exhibit K-5
Page 2 of 2

NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 3,130,516 $ 3,130,516
Special Revenue Fund $ 191,143 - 191,143
Food Service 119,781 1,892 121,673
Total Awards and Financial
Assistance $ 310,924 $ 3,132,408 $ 3,443,332

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.

5. OTHER

TPAF Social Security Contributions in the amount of $120,988 represents the amount reimbursed by the State for
the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2011. The
amount reported as TPAF Pension and Annuity Contributions of $77,724 represents the amount paid by the State
on behalf of the Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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Exhibit K-6
Page 1 of 2
NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor’'s report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

1. Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
2. Reportable conditions identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted: yes X no
State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major programs:
1. Material weakness(es) identified? . yes X no
2. Reportabie conditions identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section .510(a) of Circular A-133? __x__vyes no
Identification of major programs:
GMIS Number Name of State Program
11-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
11-495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
11-495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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Exhibit K-6
Page 2 of 2
NEWARK EDUCATORS' COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section Il - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to

the basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapters 5.18 through 5.20 of
Government Auditing Standards.

Finding 2011-1

Government Unit Deposit Protection Act participation verification was not supplied.

Criteria or specific requirement

Equalization Aid Compliance Requirements.
Condition
See Finding 2011-1.

Questioned Costs

None.
Context

See Finding 2011-1.
Effect

See Finding 2011-1.
Cause
See Finding 2011-1.

Recommendation

See Finding 2011-1.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective action

Management is aware that their depository is not GUDPA certified and is taking corrective action.

Section il - Schedule State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133 and
New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, as amended.

Refer to above Recommendation 2011-1
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Exhibit K-7

NEWARK EDUCATORS’ COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal
and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, U.S.
OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2010-1

The Treasurer’s records were incomplete, not filed in agreement with the records of the Board Secretary as of
June 30, 2010, inaccurate when filed, and not approved by the Board of Trustees of the Charter School or
County Superintendent where required

Current Status

Corrected.

Finding 2010-2

The general ledger as presented for audit required material correcting audit journal entries to bring it into
agreement with actual account balances. The Special Revenue fund general ledger was presented out of
balance. The Trust and Agency fund general ledger was not usable as presented.

Current Status

Corrected.

Finding 2010-3

Bank recongciliations were not prepared accurately. A payroll agency cash account was not established. The
Special Revenue Fund's cash balance was overdrawn at June 30, 2010. Government Unit Deposit
Protection Act participation verification was not supplied.

Current Status

All aspects of finding 2010-3 were corrected with the exception of the Government Unit Deposit Protection
participation verification.

Finding 2010-4

The Charter School had no written procedures for the proper maintenance and recording of student
enroliment data.

Current Status

Corrected.
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